 STEP Guidelines Bidder’s Conference January 27, 2006, Questions & Answers

Question 1:
What is meant by schools in Section B. Cooperative Relationships sub 1. Item C. Narrative Point Scale? Will these 2 points be based upon # of schools?

Answer:
The reference to schools in item B. Cooperative Relationship refers to schools with any combination of grades seventh through twelfth. Points for any category are based on the depth and quality of the services to be provided.

Question 2:
Are the reviewers of the proposals all internal NYSED reviewers?

Answer:
Yes, all reviewers are internal New York State Education Department (NYSED) professional staff.

Question 3:
Will there be comments sent back to bidders or posted as points of information to facilitate more competitive bids in subsequent RFPs?

Answer:
All questions and answers are posted by February 13, 2006 on the website following the Bidder’s Conference.

Question 4:
Please confirm that I heard that the Comptroller’s Office is comfortable with 10 points in “Prior Experience”.

Answer:
Yes, the Office of the New York State Comptroller approved the STEP 2006-2010 guidelines as being open and competitive.

Question 5:
Please clarify how we should deal with the discrepancy between the RFP’s maximum Fringe Benefit (FB) of 40.31% and the maximum FB charged by the Research Foundation of SUNY.

Answer:
Institutions may use the Fringe Benefit rate for their sector (i.e., CUNY or SUNY) when calculating the Fringe Benefit rate for the proposed budget. However, the rate of Fringe Benefits is subject to change based on changes in the government allowable rate.

Question 6:
The STEP conference is structured to be hard for small programs to participate:  Can you use some of the proposed extra funding to fund conferences separately?

Answer:
No, under the grant-contract process all funds have to be distributed to the institutions that have been awarded a contract.  Institutions may include the anticipated conference cost in their proposed budget.

Question 7:
Who is doing the reviewing?

Answer: 
Two qualified and trained reviewers from NYSED will review each proposal. See Section XIII Proposal Rating for additional information.  

Question 8:   
Are schools that are designated SINI (Schools in Need of Improvement) considered under the priority for SURR and schools in need of corrective action?  We have a number of these in New York City.  (I believe that the difference is that they do not receive federal funding).

Answer:
Yes.  Schools Under Registration Review, Schools in Need of Corrective Action and Schools in Need of Improvement would also be considered acceptable for Priority C.

Question 9:
What is the allowable percent that can be used by consortia in Indirect Expenses? Is there a process to allow for a request for an increase in Indirect Expenses?

    Answer:
Generally, the Indirect Expense rate of 8% is the maximum rate for each contract regardless of the number of institutions participating. 

Question 10:
For consortium, do they have to do both #4 and #6B? 

Answer:
Consortium are required to respond to B6.  A response to B4 is optional since this is a priority.

Question 11:
How can programs get their score?

Answer:
Proposals with an average score of 65 or higher will be eligible for funding.  Applicants not recommended for funding may request in writing a summary of the reviewers’ comments.

Question 12:
Are new MOAs required if we got them 2 years ago?

Answer:
Yes.  This proposal is for 2006-2010 and the MOAs should reflect support for that time period.

Question 13: 
Could you explain more about the subcontract portion of the allowable expense portion of the proposal?

Answer:
Subcontracts for program services can be made. However, the maximum allowable rate for subcontracts is 30% of the contract.

Question 14:
Please explain more about the signed evidence for each cooperating partner.  Examples.

Answer:
Signed evidence from a cooperating partner is a letter of support or memorandum of agreement (MOA) that outlines that organization’s support of the STEP program.  The letter and/or MOA should describe how the STEP project and other entity work collaboratively.

Question 15:
How does an institution with no prior program reflect and rate prior success? Would we gauge participation and success in six months after the program had begun? Would placement in internships and mentoring opportunities count as successful implementation of certain programs?

Answer:
The Narrative Format Section A Prior STEP Success asks for results of current or previously funded STEP Projects. Therefore, an institution applying for STEP funding would have had to have previous experience conducting a STEP project to be considered for a rating in this category.  The rating in this category will be based on longevity and quantifiable evidence of program effectiveness.

Question 16:
Will STEP programs that are already established receive special consideration when it comes to the funding scale?

Answer:
No.  Section XIII outlines the proposal rating process.  No special consideration will be given to already established STEP programs.

Question 17:
Do letters of support from the 2005-2006 proposal need to be done again?

Answer:
New letters of support are required for the new funding cycle 2006-2010.

Question 18:
What if the area you serve does not have a Hispanic/Latino population?  How do you make it a priority?

Answer:
Not all institutions are expected to address every priority.  Your institution, however, may be able to respond to another priority such as increasing the recruitment and retention of male students.

Question 19:
Will the cost per student be compared to other programs or what the program has to offer?

Answer:
Institution may receive up to 15 points for their proposed budget based on the lowest to highest cost per student determined by the unduplicated head count and amount of STEP funds requested. The institutions will be ranked from the lowest to the higher cost per student and allocated points accordingly.

Question 20:
Do we need to provide new or original MOAs, MOUs, and letters of support?

Answer:
Yes.  See Question #12.

Question 21:
For institutions that have not previously had a STEP program but have had a CSTEP program, is section 1 an appropriate place to mention that and include an attachment reflecting the success of CSTEP?

Answer:
Institutions may not substitute CSTEP experience for prior STEP success. Points will not be awarded for prior CSTEP experience.

Question 22:
Regarding cost/student ratios, should an organization construct a model to provide better quality services for a smaller group of participants?  Or rather construct a model to provide fewer services for a large group of participants?

Answer:
The institution should construct the best possible model based on its resources and capabilities.  The greatest number of points in the rating scale is fifty (50), based on the description of Activities/Services, Staffing, Time Allocation, and Measures of Positive Performance. Therefore, the model is the most heavily weighted category

Question 23:
What is the average amount of students the program serves?

Answer:
There is no predetermined average amount of students served. Individual institutions, based on their resources and capacity, determine the number of students they can serve.

Question 24:
If the proposed budgets of all institutions do not add up to the total funds available, is there a possibility we will all get additional money?

Answer:
Institutions approved for funding are eligible to receive up to the amount requested in their application and not more than the allowable maximum for individual institutions or consortia..

Question 25:
What is a “reasonable” range for student cost? What is “ballpark” figure?

Answer:
For the 2002-2003 program year the average cost per student in a STEP program was approximately $1,057. However, costs vary by an institution’s program size and services provided.

Question 26:
Given the increased funding, can we expect a larger grant if requested and suggested the proposal?

Answer:
Section VIII, Funding Limitations indicates that the maximum level of funding for public and independent institutions is $200,000.  If the institution conducts a summer program, then the maximum is $350,000.

Question 27:
If a consultant is a university employee and the institution did not mention this in the original proposal, does the institution need written confirmation that this is allowed although it creates extra service for an individual?

Answer:
The institution will be responsible for reporting information accurately. If an error has occurred, the institution is responsible for advising SED and submitting a written request to make the appropriate adjustment.

Question 28:
Regarding distribution of funds within the consortia, if each institution that is part of the consortia is requesting a particular amount of money and that is granted as part of the consortia award, how does the consortia delegate the money to each respective program?  Is each institution granted the amount requested in their proposal if approved?

Answer:
If the award is to a consortium comprised of two or more postsecondary institutions, the maximum award to the consortium is $900,000.  The distribution of the award within the consortium should be decided by the members of the consortium.  The level of funding proposed for each institution within a consortium should be determined in advance of submitting the RFP and identified in the RFP.

Question 29:
Are the students in the “Free Lunch” program in their school eligible for STEP based on the economically disadvantaged category?

Answer:
These students may be eligible for STEP; however, documentation to support their eligibility is required.

Question 30:
CUNY RF charges 9%, will STEP cover the 1% difference?

Answer:
No.  The maximum indirect expense rate that will be paid by the New York State Education Department (NYSED) is 8%.

Question 31:
How is the RFP advertised in order to make it competitive?

Answer:
The STEP RFP is posted on the New York State Education Department website and a link for the RFP is provided in the New York State Contract Reporter.  

Question 32:
If our program has a bridge component (to 9th grade) that seeks to prepare students to do better in M/S in 9th grade (based on eighth grade test scores) does this meet priority 5D?

Answer:
In order to meet priority D5, the program would have to provide services to eighth grade students designed to improve their mathematics and science assessment test scores.

Question 33:
Will programs be penalized-funding-wise at the end of the program year if they don’t have all of the number of students proposed to serve? This question refers to Appendix V, item G.

Answer:        
Institutions will be required to maintain at least 90% of the agreed upon enrollment.   Failure to maintain 90% of the agreed upon enrollment may affect payments by NYSED.    

Question 34:
Will you be able to share with us the rating for the last proposal we submitted?

Answer:
No.  The 2005-2009 proposal was deemed invalid by the New York State Officer of the Comptroller while the review process was in progress.  As a result of the Comptroller’s decision, the review process was stopped and discarded. 

Question 35:  Are any opportunities for STEP professional development being considered by SED other than Best Practices Conference?

Answer:       
SED has provided Administrative Training Workshops (ATW) and Orientation for new STEP Project Administrators. However, these sessions are planned based on the number of participants and budgetary considerations. Funds may be allocated in the proposed budget to cover the costs of attending meetings in Albany for this purpose. 

Question 36:
Priority A refers to male participants only.  Do we continue to actively recruit historically underrepresented females?


Answer:
Yes.  This priority was included in the RFP in an effort to balance the number of male and female participants in STEP.

Question 37:
Priority E refers to collaboration with other CSTEP programs.  Can an institution demonstrate collaboration between its STEP and CSTEP programs?

Answer:
Yes.  In Requirements for Funding, VI,C institutions that have both STEP and CSTEP on their campus are required to describe the collaboration between the projects.

Question 38:
In Attachment IV, pages 1-7, last year the first column asked applicants to define strategies to achieve the objective.  These forms begin with activities.  Will we be asked to provide the strategies on which the activities will be based?

Answer:
No.  Applicants should respond to the columns as they are provided.

Question 39:
The scoring page (p. 15):  Project staffing section indicates 1 point for a consortial arrangement.  If an institution is not part of one, does the institution automatically lose 1 point?

Answer:
No.  The scoring chart will be corrected to reflect that individual institutions and consortia each can earn up to 5 points in this category.

Question 40:
The evaluation component is not described anywhere in the RFP, other than its listing on the scoring page (p.15).  Last year it was part of Attachment IV.  Where should the evaluation component be addressed?

Answer:
The evaluation component should be addressed in Attachment IV, Objectives, Activities matrix under the column “Measures of Positive Performance”.  Performance measures (expected outcomes) should be included for each of the four objectives.

